3D VISUALIZATION OF LEARNING MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS WITH GAMIFICATION TECHNIQUES TO INCREASE MOTIVATION OF STUDENTS

by

PETROS SELEKOS

Informatics Engineer, Technological Education Institute of Crete, 2019

A THESIS

submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree

MASTER OF SCIENCE

2023

DEPARTMENT OF ELECTRICAL AND COMPUTER ENGINEERING

SCHOOL OF ENGINEERING

HELLENIC MEDITERRANEAN UNIVERSITY



Approved by:

Major Professor Nikolaos Vidakis

Abstract

This thesis presents the design and development of a 3D gamified environment for the Open e-Class Learning Management System (LMS), aiming to enhance student motivation and engagement in e-learning. E-learning, a pivotal aspect of modern education, leverages various technologies to provide accessible and flexible learning experiences. However, maintaining student interest and active participation remains a challenge in digital learning environments. To address this, the thesis explores the integration of game-based learning into LMS, capitalizing on the engaging nature of video games to create an immersive educational experience. The core concept revolves around visualizing the Open e-Class LMS in a 3D environment, where students can navigate and interact with various LMS tools through a userfriendly interface. The implementation involves two main components: the front end, developed using the Unity3D game engine, and the back end, comprising a REST API for communication with the LMS database, developed with Spring Boot framework. A significant feature of this project is the creation of dynamic environments within the game. These elements serve as interactive spaces for learners, offering a novel approach to accessing and engaging with course materials. The thesis demonstrates that by blending 3D visualization with gamification techniques like badges, leaderboards and score, it is possible to transform traditional LMS interfaces into more engaging and interactive learning platforms. Additionally, transforming traditional exercises into game-like activities can improve motivation and satisfaction of the learning session. This approach not only makes learning more enjoyable but also promotes active learning, thereby potentially improving educational outcomes. The project sets a precedent for future innovations in e-learning, illustrating the vast potential of integrating immersive and interactive elements in educational platforms to cater to the evolving needs of digital learners.

Περίληψη

Αυτή η διατριβή παρουσιάζει τον σχεδιασμό και την ανάπτυξη ενός τρισδιάστατου παιχνιδοποιημένου περιβάλλοντος για το Σύστημα Διαχείρισης Mάθησης Open e-Class, με στόχο την ενίσχυση των κινήτρων των μαθητών και την συμμετοχή τους στην ηλεκτρονική μάθηση. Η ηλεκτρονική μάθηση, είναι μία βασική πτυχή της σύγχρονης εκπαίδευσης, αξιοποιεί διάφορες τεχνολογίες για να παρέχει προσβάσιμες και ευέλικτες εμπειρίες μάθησης. Ωστόσο, η διατήρηση του ενδιαφέροντος και η ενεργός συμμετοχή των μαθητών παραμένει μια πρόκληση στα ψηφιακά περιβάλλοντα μάθησης. Για να αντιμετωπιστεί αυτό, η διατριβή διερευνά την ενσωμάτωση της μάθησης με βάση τα παιχνίδια στο Open e-Class, αξιοποιώντας την συναρπαστική φύση των βιντεοπαιχνιδιών για να δημιουργήσει μια πιο ελκυστική εκπαιδευτική εμπειρία. Η βασική ιδέα περιστρέφεται γύρω από την οπτικοποίηση του Συστήματος Διαχείρησης Μάθησης Open e-Class, σε ένα τρισδιάστατο περιβάλλον, όπου οι μαθητές μπορούν να πλοηγηθούν και να αλληλεπιδράσουν με διάφορα εργαλεία του Open e-Class μέσω μιας φιλικής προς τον χρήστη διεπαφής. Η υλοποίηση περιλαμβάνει δύο βασικά στοιχεία: το front end, που αναπτύχθηκε χρησιμοποιώντας την μηχανή δημιουργίας παιχνιδιών Unity3D, και το back end, που αποτελείται από ένα REST API για την επικοινωνία με τη βάση δεδομένων του Open e-Class, αναπτυγμένο με το Spring Boot framework. Ένα σημαντικό χαρακτηριστικό αυτού του έργου είναι η δημιουργία δυναμικών περιβαλλόντων μέσα στο παιχνίδι. Αυτά τα στοιχεία λειτουργούν ως διαδραστικοί χώροι για τους μαθητές, προσφέροντας μια νέα προσέγγιση για την πρόσβαση και την αλληλεπίδραση με το υλικο του μαθήματος. Η διατριβή αναδεικνύει ότι με τον συνδυασμό της τρισδιάστατης απεικόνισης με τεχνικές παιχνιδοποίησης όπως τα σήματα, οι βαθμολογικοί πίνακες και η βαθμολογία, είναι δυνατόν να μετατρέψουν τις παραδοσιακές πλατφόρμες Συστημάτων Διαχείρισης Μάθησης σε πιο ελκυστικές και διαδραστικές πλατφόρμες. Επιπλέον, η μετατροπή των παραδοσιακών ασκήσεων σε δραστηριότητες παιχνιδιού μπορεί να βελτιώσει τα κίνητρα και την ικανοποίηση της μαθησιακής διαδικασίας. Αυτή η προσέγγιση καθιστά τη μάθηση όχι μόνο πιο ευχάριστη αλλά προωθεί επίσης και την ενεργό μάθηση, βελτιώνοντας έτσι τις εκπαιδευτικές επιδόσεις. Η παρούσα εργασία αποτελεί μια βάση για μελλοντικές καινοτομίες στην ηλεκτρονική μάθηση, απεικονίζοντας τις τεράστιες δυνατότητες της ενσωμάτωσης διαδραστικών στοιχείων σε εκπαιδευτικές πλατφόρμες για την κάλυψη των εξελισσόμενων αναγκών των μαθητών της ψηφιακής εποχής.

Table of Contents

Abstract	ii
Περίληψη	iii
Table of Contents	iv
List of Figures	vii
List of Tables	viii
Acknowledgements	ix
Dedication	x
Chapter 1. Introduction	1
Chapter 2. Background	3
E-learning	3
LMS	4
eClass	6
Moodle	6
Open edX	6
Gamification	7
Game Based Learning	9
Distance Learning	11
3D Virtual Environments	
The Role of Game Engines in Shaping 3D Environments	
Advancements in Game Engine Technology	
Impact on the Gaming Industry and Beyond	14
Cross-Industry Applications	14
The Future of Game Engines	14
Popular Game Engines	14
Chapter 3. State of the Art	
The Evolution of E-Learning Platforms	
Transition to Advanced E-Learning Solutions	16
The Role of LMS in Modern Education	
Current Challenges and Limitations	16
Future Directions in LMS Development	
Comprehensive Overview of Learning Management Systems	
Historical Development and Evolution of LMS	
Open e-Class LMS: A Case Study in E-Learning Platform Evolution	
Current Challenges and Limitations of Traditional LMS	

The Future of LMS: Trends and Emerging Technologies:	18
The Concept of 3D Visualization in Educational Contexts	18
Specific Applications of 3D Visualization in E-Learning	19
Real-World Implementations and Case Studies	19
Challenges and Future Directions	19
Gamification in Education	20
The Psychological Basis of Gamification in Enhancing Motivation and Engagement	20
The Impact of Gamification in Educational Settings	20
Examples of Successful Gamification Implementations in Learning Management System	<i>ıs (LMS)</i> 20
Focus on Applications and Case Studies	21
Integrating 3D Visualization and Gamification in Learning Environments	21
Theoretical Foundations and Models	21
Applications and Implementations	22
Synergies and Challenges	22
Definition and Characteristics of Serious Games	23
Role and Impact of Serious Games in Educational Settings	23
The Use of the Unity3D Engine in Developing Educational Games	23
Examples of Serious Games in LMS and Their Outcomes	24
Case Studies and Practical Applications	24
Focus on Apps and Implementations	24
Chapter 4. A Gamified LMS Design	25
Game Design	25
Game Overview	25
Environment and Structure	25
Navigation and Interaction	25
Gamification Elements	26
Technical Aspects	26
Educational Objectives	26
World Environment Design	28
Workflow of User Interaction in the Game:	30
Software Design	30
System Architecture	
System Components	32
Game Development	33
API Development	33

Game-Based Learning Experience3	34
Technical Architecture3	34
User Interface Design3	34
System Requirements and Platform3	35
Chapter 5. Implementation	36
Overview	36
Unity Game Engine3	36
Scene Development and Dynamic Content3	36
Animations and User Interaction3	37
API Development for Data Integration3	37
Chapter 6. Results & Discussion	38
Environmental Design and Structure	39
Central Hub3	39
Classroom Environment4	11
Navigation and Interaction4	12
Navigation and Interaction4 Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics4	12 13
Navigation and Interaction4 Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics4 Gamification Elements4	42 43 43
Navigation and Interaction	42 13 13 13
Navigation and Interaction	42 13 13 13 13
Navigation and Interaction4Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics4Gamification Elements4Technical Aspects4Educational Objectives and Impact4Pros and Cons of the Implementation4	42 43 43 43 43 45
Navigation and Interaction 4 Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics 4 Gamification Elements 4 Technical Aspects 4 Educational Objectives and Impact 4 Pros and Cons of the Implementation 4 Chapter 7. Conclusion & Future Work 4	12 13 13 13 15 15
Navigation and Interaction 4 Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics 4 Gamification Elements 4 Technical Aspects 4 Educational Objectives and Impact 4 Pros and Cons of the Implementation 4 Chapter 7. Conclusion & Future Work 4 Effective Integration of 3D Visualization and Gamification 4	12 13 13 13 15 15 16 16
Navigation and Interaction 4 Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics 4 Gamification Elements 4 Technical Aspects 4 Educational Objectives and Impact 4 Pros and Cons of the Implementation 4 Chapter 7. Conclusion & Future Work 4 Effective Integration of 3D Visualization and Gamification 4 Impact on Learning Experience and Outcomes 4	42 43 43 43 45 45 46 46 47
Navigation and Interaction 4 Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics 4 Gamification Elements 4 Technical Aspects 4 Educational Objectives and Impact 4 Pros and Cons of the Implementation 4 Chapter 7. Conclusion & Future Work 4 Effective Integration of 3D Visualization and Gamification 4 Impact on Learning Experience and Outcomes 4 Future Work 4	 42 43 43 43 45 45 46 46 47 47
Navigation and Interaction 4 Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics 4 Gamification Elements 4 Technical Aspects 4 Educational Objectives and Impact 4 Pros and Cons of the Implementation 4 Chapter 7. Conclusion & Future Work 4 Effective Integration of 3D Visualization and Gamification 4 Impact on Learning Experience and Outcomes 4 Future Work 4 Future Work 4 And User Engagement 4	 42 43 43 43 45 45 46 47 47 47
Navigation and Interaction 4 Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics 4 Gamification Elements 4 Technical Aspects 4 Educational Objectives and Impact 4 Pros and Cons of the Implementation 4 Chapter 7. Conclusion & Future Work 4 Effective Integration of 3D Visualization and Gamification 4 Impact on Learning Experience and Outcomes 4 Future Work 4 Expanding Interactivity and User Engagement 4 Technological Advancements and Integration 4	 42 43 43 43 45 45 46 47 47 47 48
Navigation and Interaction 4 Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics 4 Gamification Elements 4 Gamification Elements 4 Technical Aspects 4 Educational Objectives and Impact 4 Pros and Cons of the Implementation 4 Chapter 7. Conclusion & Future Work 4 Effective Integration of 3D Visualization and Gamification 4 Impact on Learning Experience and Outcomes 4 Future Work 4 Expanding Interactivity and User Engagement 4 Technological Advancements and Integration 4 Conclusion 4	12 13 13 15 15 16 17 17 17 18 18

List of Figures

Figure 1. Learning Management Systems [25]	5
Figure 2. Gamification Model [28]	7
Figure 3. Game-based Learning [36]	9
Figure 4. Proposed application's Workflow diagram	
Figure 5. System Architecture Diagram	
Figure 6. Application Package Diagram	
Figure 7. Main Environment	
Figure 8. Central Hub (a) without calendar, (b) with calendar	
Figure 9. Central Hub with open announcements (a) table, (b) calendar	40
Figure 10. Classroom Environment	41
Figure 11. Quiz Game Exercises	42
Figure 12. Course Selection and transition to classroom	44

List of Tables

Table 1. Hardware Requirements 3	35
------------------------------------	----

Acknowledgements

I am deeply thankful to Professor N. Vidakis from the Department of Informatics Engineering at Hellenic Mediterranean University for his invaluable wisdom and guidance, which played a significant role in the completion of my thesis. My gratitude also extends to I. Logothetis for his unwavering support and essential feedback. Furthermore, I would like to extend my appreciation to the entire Nile Lab team, whose expertise and experience were instrumental in navigating the technical challenges I faced during my project. Lastly, I wish to convey my deep appreciation to Dr. S. Liakaki Stavropoulou for her ongoing encouragement and motivation throughout this process.

Dedication

This thesis is dedicated to my family and friends, whose steadfast support and presence were invaluable throughout this journey. A special dedication goes to my dog Chloe, whose constant companionship and friendship were a source of comfort and encouragement during the writing of this thesis. Finally, I lovingly dedicate this work to the memory of my uncle Konstantinos Papaioannou.

Chapter 1. Introduction

The realm of educational technology is witnessing a transformative shift with the integration of gamification in learning management systems (LMS) [1]. This shift is not just a trend but a response to the evolving needs of the digital age learners. Gamification [2], which entails applying game-design elements in non-gaming contexts, has emerged as a potent tool to boost student engagement and motivation within educational settings. Traditional learning management systems, primarily focused on course management and content delivery, often lack the elements that stimulate student engagement and motivation [3]. The integration of 3D visualization in LMS offers a dynamic solution, transforming static and monotonous interfaces into engaging, interactive experiences.

In the context of online and distance learning [4], where student engagement and retention are significant challenges, the role of gamified and immersive environments becomes even more critical. The addition of 3D visualization in LMS introduces a sense of spatial presence and interaction, making the learning process more engaging and relatable. This is particularly important in scenarios where hands-on experience and interactive learning are vital yet hard to replicate in a virtual setting. Moreover, the combination of gamification [5] and 3D visualization aligns with contemporary pedagogical approaches that emphasize experiential and interactive learning, catering to a diverse range of learning styles and preferences.

Research in the field of gamified learning environments has been expansive, yet there are specific studies and implementations that stand out. For example, the use of Second Life [6], a 3D virtual world platform, for educational purposes demonstrated how immersive environments could enhance student engagement and collaborative learning. Another notable example is the integration of gamification in Moodle [7], a widely used LMS, where elements like points, badges, and leaderboards were shown to positively influence student motivation.

However, these implementations often focus on a fragmentary integration of gamification or 3D elements. A study that explored the use of 3D game-like simulations in medical education [8] highlighted the potential for increased student engagement and improved learning outcomes, yet it did not fully integrate these elements into a comprehensive LMS. Similarly, while gamification techniques have been applied in educational software [2], there is a lack of research on their full integration with 3D visualization in LMS platforms. This indicates an opportunity for a more holistic approach, combining both aspects to enhance the learning experience.

The literature reveals a significant gap in studies that comprehensively integrate 3D visualization with gamification in learning management systems [9]. While individual benefits of gamification and 3D visualization in education are well documented, their synergistic potential within an LMS context remains underexplored. This gap underscores a critical need for innovative educational models that seamlessly blend 3D gamified environments with traditional learning platforms, aiming to create a more immersive and motivating learning experience.

Furthermore, the challenge extends beyond the theoretical benefits of such integration. Practical implementation, including user interface design, technical feasibility, and ensuring the educational efficacy of these gamified 3D environments [10], poses significant hurdles. There is a need for research that not only conceptualizes but also practically implements and evaluates the effectiveness of these integrated systems in real-world educational settings.

This thesis endeavors to fill the existing gap by designing and developing a serious game that visualizes an Open e-Class [11] LMS in a 3D environment, incorporating gamification techniques to enhance student motivation and engagement. This research aims to transform the traditional LMS experience into something more captivating and interactive, thereby addressing the issue of reduced student interest in conventional learning platforms. The guiding research questions for this thesis include the following:

How can 3D visualization be effectively and seamlessly integrated with gamification techniques in a learning management system to enhance student motivation and engagement?

What impact does a 3D gamified LMS have on students' learning experience and outcomes, especially in comparison to traditional LMS interfaces?

This study aims to not only contribute to the academic discourse in educational technology but also provide actionable insights for the development of more engaging and effective learning platforms. By exploring the implementation of a 3D gamified LMS, the thesis seeks to offer a novel approach to online learning that is both educationally enriching and technologically innovative.

The rest of the thesis is structured as follows, Chapter 2 provides the required background knowledge for the focus of this report, while Chapter 3 outlines the state of the art and offers a review of the literature. Chapter 4 describes the methodology followed for the structure and implementation of the project. Chapter 5 reports the implementation details of this gamified application. Finally, Chapter 6 presents the results and discussion of the findings and Chapter 7 concludes this thesis and gives insight into future work.

Chapter 2. Background

E-learning

E-learning, a method of education facilitated by technology, has significantly transformed the landscape of learning and teaching [12]. It is defined as the delivery of educational content via electronic media, including the internet, intranet, satellite broadcast, audio/video tape, interactive TV, and CD-ROM. This mode of learning stands out for its flexibility, accessibility, and the potential for personalized education. Unlike traditional classroom settings, e-learning enables learners to access educational materials from any location and at any time, making education more inclusive and adaptable to individual needs. This approach supports a variety of learning styles and paces, catering to a diverse range of learners, including working professionals, remote students, and those with physical disabilities.

The advancement of technology has played a pivotal role in the evolution of e-learning. Interactive and multimedia components such as video lectures, virtual simulations, and discussion forums have enriched the learning experience, making it more engaging and effective. The incorporation of Learning Management Systems (LMS) like Moodle [7], Blackboard [13], and Canvas [14] [15] has streamlined course administration, delivery, and tracking, enhancing the organizational aspect of e-learning. These platforms often incorporate adaptive learning technologies that tailor the educational content to the learner's pace and understanding, thereby optimizing the learning process.

Moreover, e-learning has proven to be a valuable tool in broadening educational access, particularly in regions where traditional learning resources are limited. Its scalability allows for mass education, evident in the popularity of Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCs) [16] offered by universities and organizations worldwide. However, e-learning also faces challenges such as the digital divide, where disparities in access to technology can hinder equitable education. Additionally, the lack of face-to-face interaction and hands-on experiences in certain disciplines can be a limitation. Despite these challenges, the flexibility, cost-effectiveness, and continuous innovation in e-learning [17] make it a vital component of modern education, shaping the future of how knowledge is disseminated and acquired.

Building upon the existing insights into e-learning, it's important to explore its impact on both educators and learners. For educators, e-learning presents an opportunity to develop more dynamic and interactive curricula [18]. They can leverage multimedia tools, virtual reality, and artificial intelligence to create immersive and engaging learning experiences. Additionally, e-learning facilitates a broader reach, allowing educators to connect with students beyond geographical boundaries [19]. However, this shift also demands that educators adapt to new teaching methodologies, often requiring them to acquire new skills in digital communication and course design. There's also the challenge of maintaining student engagement and motivation in an environment where direct, face-to-face interaction is limited.

From a student's perspective, e-learning offers autonomy and control over their learning journey. Students can learn at their own pace, revisit challenging concepts, and access a wide array of resources [20]. The flexibility to balance education with other life commitments is particularly beneficial for adult learners and those with varied responsibilities. Yet, this mode of learning requires high levels of self-discipline and motivation, which can be challenging for some students. Additionally, the lack of social interaction and networking opportunities that traditional classrooms offer can impact the overall learning experience [21].

Another vital aspect of e-learning is its role in corporate training and professional development. Companies increasingly adopt e-learning platforms to provide training to employees, as it offers a cost-effective, scalable, and efficient way to upskill a workforce[17]. Customized training modules can be developed to meet specific organizational needs, allowing employees to acquire new skills and knowledge pertinent to their roles.

In conclusion, e-learning represents a significant shift in the educational paradigm, characterized by its use of technology to make learning more accessible, flexible, and diverse. While it brings several advantages, such as inclusivity, personalization, and broader reach, it also poses challenges like the need for digital literacy, potential lack of engagement, and reliance on self-motivation. As technology continues to evolve, so will the methods and effectiveness of e-learning, making it an increasingly integral part of the educational ecosystem.

LMS

Learning Management Systems (LMS) [3] (Figure 1) have revolutionized the educational landscape, offering a digital platform that streamlines the delivery, management, and tracking of educational courses and training programs. At its core, an LMS is a software application that provides educators and trainers with a framework to create, deliver, and monitor educational content, while also providing learners with a centralized repository for courses, materials, and assessments. This system supports a wide range of learning strategies and styles, accommodating both synchronous and asynchronous learning environments. It enables educators to design and tailor content to meet diverse learning objectives, ensuring that education is more accessible, personalized, and efficient [22].

One of the key strengths of an LMS is its ability to foster an interactive and engaging learning experience. Features such as discussion boards, live chat, and multimedia content integration allow for an interactive and dynamic learning environment. This not only improves learner engagement but also facilitates better communication between learners and instructors[23]. Additionally, an LMS often includes tools for tracking and reporting, which are essential for monitoring learner progress and evaluating the effectiveness of the course material. These analytics tools provide invaluable insights into learner performance, enabling educators to make data-driven decisions to enhance the learning experience[24].

Moreover, the scalability and flexibility of LMSs make them particularly advantageous in today's fast-paced and increasingly digital world. They support a variety of content formats, including text, video, and interactive simulations, catering to different learning preferences and needs. This adaptability extends to various educational contexts, from K-12 and higher education to corporate training and professional development programs[3]. In essence, an LMS serves as a bridge, connecting learners with the educational resources they need, regardless of their location or time zone, thus democratizing access to education and empowering a more diverse learner population.



Figure 1. Learning Management Systems [25]

Learning Management Systems (LMS) like eClass, Moodle, and Open edX have become integral tools in the realm of education, offering robust platforms for managing and delivering educational content[11]. eClass, for instance, is known for its user-friendly interface and comprehensive suite of tools that cater to various educational institutions. It facilitates the creation, distribution, and management of courses, providing a seamless experience for both educators and learners. Moodle, another popular LMS, stands out for its open-source nature, allowing for extensive customization and flexibility[15]. It's widely adopted across various educational sectors due to its modular design, which supports a range of plugins and themes tailored to specific learning needs.

eClass

eClass is a user-centric Learning Management System that has gained popularity for its intuitive design and comprehensive set of educational tools. It is tailored to facilitate both teaching and learning activities, offering a wide array of functionalities like course management, online quizzes, and grade books [11]. eClass stands out for its streamlined user experience, making it easy for educators to create and manage courses, and for students to access learning materials and collaborate with peers. The platform also includes features like calendar integration, forums, and personalized notifications, enhancing the overall educational experience. Its ability to integrate with various third-party tools and resources makes it a versatile choice for educational institutions seeking a reliable and efficient LMS solution.

Moodle

Moodle is a highly regarded open-source Learning Management System, renowned for its flexibility and customizable nature[26]. As an open-source platform, it allows educators and developers to modify and tailor the system to meet specific educational needs and objectives. Moodle's extensive plugin directory enables the integration of various functionalities, from plagiarism detection to interactive content creation. It supports a collaborative learning environment with features like forums, wikis, and real-time chat. The platform's scalability makes it suitable for both small classes and large institutions, and its active community of users and developers continuously contributes to its improvement and evolution.

$Open \ edX$

Open edX, developed by Harvard and MIT, is known for its robustness and scalability, particularly in hosting Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCs) [16]. This platform excels in offering a high-quality, scalable e-learning environment, capable of supporting thousands of learners simultaneously. Open edX features a range of interactive course content options, including video lectures, embedded testing, interactive simulations, and discussion boards

[27]. It also provides advanced analytics tools, giving educators insights into student progress and engagement. The platform's emphasis on interactive and immersive learning experiences, combined with its ability to handle large volumes of users, makes it a preferred choice for institutions looking to offer open-access online courses on a global scale.

Gamification

Gamification (Figure 2) refers to the application of game-design elements and principles in non-game contexts. This concept has gained significant traction across various sectors, including education, business, health, and marketing, due to its potential to enhance engagement, motivation, and overall user experience[2]. The underlying premise of gamification is to tap into the innate human desire for competition, achievement, and collaboration, transforming mundane tasks or learning processes into more enjoyable and interactive experiences.



Figure 2. Gamification Model [28]

At the heart of gamification lies the use of game mechanics such as points, badges, leaderboards, and progress tracking[10]. These elements serve to create a sense of accomplishment and progress, encouraging continued participation and effort. For instance, in an educational context, gamification can transform a learning activity into a more interactive and competitive experience, where students earn points or badges for completing tasks or mastering new skills. This approach not only makes learning more engaging but also provides

tangible milestones for students to aim for, enhancing their motivation and involvement in the educational process[29].

Moreover, gamification has a significant impact on behavioral change. By incorporating elements of storytelling, challenges, and immediate feedback, it can influence users' actions and decisions in a positive direction. In the context of health and wellness, for example, gamification techniques are used to encourage healthier lifestyle choices, such as regular exercise or balanced eating habits[30]. By turning these choices into a game-like challenge, with rewards for achieving certain goals, individuals are more likely to stay committed and enjoy the process of attaining better health outcomes. This transformative potential of gamification makes it a powerful tool in various fields, offering a creative and effective way to engage and motivate people.

Gamification also leverages the psychological aspects of human behavior, particularly the concepts of intrinsic and extrinsic motivation. Intrinsic motivation, where individuals engage in an activity for its own sake, can be fostered through game elements that emphasize mastery, autonomy, and purpose[31]. For instance, in a workplace setting, gamification can make routine tasks more engaging by offering employees autonomy in choosing how to approach these tasks, providing them with opportunities to master new skills, and clearly demonstrating the impact of their contributions[29]. On the other hand, extrinsic motivation, driven by external rewards such as points or prizes, is also a critical aspect of gamification. This approach is particularly effective in short-term engagement and goal-oriented tasks, where immediate rewards can significantly boost participation and effort.

Another crucial aspect of gamification is its ability to foster community and social interaction. By incorporating elements like leaderboards, team challenges, and social sharing, gamification can create a sense of community and healthy competition[30]. This social dimension not only enhances engagement but also provides support and motivation through peer interaction. For example, in a fitness app, users can share their progress, compete in challenges, and support each other's goals, creating a community of users who are collectively engaged in a healthier lifestyle. This social connectivity is especially valuable in today's digital age, where fostering community and collaboration can be challenging[31].

Lastly, it's important to address the challenges and ethical considerations in gamification. While gamification can be highly effective, it must be designed thoughtfully to avoid potential pitfalls such as overemphasis on competition, which can lead to negative behaviors like cheating or unhealthy rivalry. Moreover, the extrinsic rewards system of gamification might overshadow intrinsic motivations if not balanced properly, leading to a

decline in engagement once the rewards are removed. Ethical considerations also come into play, particularly in ensuring that gamification is inclusive, respects user privacy, and does not manipulate users in negative ways. As such, designers of gamified systems must carefully consider these aspects to create a balanced, ethical, and effective gamified experience[29].

These additional dimensions underscore the complexity and potential of gamification as a tool for enhancing engagement and motivation across various domains. When implemented thoughtfully, gamification can be a powerful approach to transforming activities, enhancing learning, and influencing behavior in positive and lasting ways.

Game Based Learning

Game-based learning (Figure 3) is an innovative approach to education that integrates the principles of gameplay into the learning process[32]. This method capitalizes on the engaging and interactive nature of games to enhance learning experiences, making education more effective and enjoyable. Game-based learning is not merely about using games in the classroom; it's about leveraging game design elements such as points, levels, and challenges to create educational experiences that are both compelling and instructive[33].



Figure 3. Game-based Learning [36]

One of the key benefits of game-based learning is the enhancement of student motivation. Games naturally create a compelling environment where students are driven to achieve goals, solve problems, and engage in collaborative learning[34]. This interactive form

of learning often leads to higher levels of engagement compared to traditional teaching methods. Moreover, the immediate feedback provided in games allows learners to understand their progress and areas for improvement in real time, facilitating a more personalized learning experience[35].

Furthermore, game-based learning fosters the development of critical skills such as problem-solving, critical thinking, and decision-making. By presenting learners with complex scenarios that require strategic thinking and creativity, games encourage students to apply their knowledge in practical and often multidisciplinary contexts[36]. This approach not only reinforces academic concepts but also prepares students for real-world challenges by developing their analytical and cognitive skills. As a result, game-based learning is increasingly being recognized as an effective tool in modern education, providing a dynamic and interactive platform for learners to develop essential skills while remaining engaged and motivated.[34]

Another significant aspect of game-based learning is its capacity to enhance collaborative learning. Many educational games encourage teamwork and communication, fostering social skills and the ability to work effectively in groups[32]. This aspect is particularly valuable in preparing students for the collaborative nature of the modern workforce. Additionally, through multiplayer formats and online platforms, game-based learning can transcend physical classroom boundaries, enabling students from diverse geographical locations to interact, collaborate, and learn from each other.

Lastly, game-based learning is remarkably effective in providing a safe learning environment [34]. In the virtual world of games, students can experiment, take risks, and learn from their mistakes without the fear of real-world consequences. This encourages a growth mindset where learners are more willing to explore and tackle complex problems. Furthermore, the use of game elements like storytelling and role-playing can make abstract or challenging subjects more relatable and easier to understand, thus enhancing comprehension and retention.[37]

In conclusion, game-based learning stands out as a multifaceted educational approach. By combining the elements of fun, interactivity, and challenge, it not only keeps students engaged but also caters to diverse learning needs, promotes collaborative skills, and fosters a safe and inclusive learning environment. As education continues to evolve, game-based learning is poised to play a crucial role in shaping future learning experiences.

Distance Learning

Distance learning, often referred to as e-learning or online education, is a method of education that allows students to access learning materials and interact with their instructors and peers remotely, usually via the internet [38]. This approach to education has gained significant traction, especially in the wake of global challenges such as the COVID-19 pandemic, which necessitated physical distancing and led to widespread school closures. Distance learning encompasses a range of technologies and teaching approaches, from pre-recorded lectures and digital coursework to live, interactive classes conducted via video conferencing. Its flexibility allows learners to study from anywhere in the world, provided they have internet access, and often at their own pace[5].

One of the key advantages of distance learning is its accessibility. It breaks down geographical barriers, enabling individuals in remote or underserved areas to access quality education that might otherwise be unavailable to them. Additionally, it offers convenience and flexibility, accommodating different learning styles and schedules. Students can balance their studies with work or family commitments, making education more inclusive for non-traditional learners, such as working adults or those with caregiving responsibilities[5]. However, this mode of learning also requires a high degree of self-motivation and discipline, as the lack of a physical classroom environment can lead to feelings of isolation and decreased engagement.

On the flip side, distance learning presents several challenges. The most significant is the digital divide, where unequal access to technology and reliable internet connectivity can exacerbate existing educational inequalities. There's also the concern of reduced opportunity for practical, hands-on experiences and the potential for diminished social interaction, which is crucial for developing communication skills and building network[38]s. Despite these challenges, the evolution of digital technologies and innovative teaching methods are continually improving the effectiveness of distance learning. As it becomes more embedded in the educational landscape, it is likely to transform traditional notions of teaching and learning, making education more adaptable and accessible in an increasingly digital world.

Another aspect of distance learning is the customization it offers. Modern e-learning platforms often incorporate adaptive learning technologies, which personalize the educational experience by adjusting the content based on an individual's learning pace and understanding. This approach contrasts with the one-size-fits-all model of traditional classrooms, providing a more tailored educational journey[38]. Furthermore, distance learning platforms often include

various interactive tools such as quizzes, discussion forums, and interactive simulations, which enhance the learning experience and help in retaining information more effectively.

The impact of distance learning on educators is also noteworthy. It requires instructors to adapt their teaching styles to fit the online format. This often means developing new skills in digital communication and learning management systems [39]. Teachers are tasked with creating engaging and interactive online content, which can be a challenge, especially for those accustomed to traditional face-to-face teaching methods. However, this shift also presents opportunities for educators to innovate and reach a broader audience.

Looking to the future, distance learning is poised to play an increasingly integral role in the global education sector. The integration of emerging technologies such as artificial intelligence, virtual reality, and augmented reality into e-learning platforms is set to further enhance the interactivity and effectiveness of online education [40]. These advancements could lead to more immersive and realistic learning experiences, potentially closing the gap between traditional and online education modalities [39]. Additionally, the growing acceptance and credibility of online credentials and degrees are likely to continue, potentially reshaping higher education and lifelong learning landscapes.

In summary, distance learning represents a dynamic and evolving field, offering a range of benefits and facing unique challenges. Its flexibility, accessibility, and potential for personalization make it an attractive option for many learners, while the digital divide and the need for self-motivation and discipline remain significant hurdles. As technology continues to advance and educators become more adept at online teaching, distance learning is likely to become an even more prevalent and effective form of education.

3D Virtual Environments

3D virtual environments represent a significant leap in technology, offering immersive spaces for a multitude of activities, from entertainment and learning to socializing and professional development [41]. These environments are digitally crafted spaces, often characterized by their three-dimensional presentation, which provides a sense of depth and presence far surpassing traditional 2D interfaces. The experience in these environments is more engaging due to the realistic interaction and exploration possibilities they offer[42].

The creation of 3D virtual environments involves intricate computer graphics, user interface design, and often networked communications for multi-user interactions. They are built using polygons to create lifelike scenarios, and complex algorithms manage elements like lighting, textures, and physics to enhance realism[43]. Users typically interact within these

spaces through avatars, customizable digital personas, which further deepen the immersion and personal connection.

The versatility of 3D virtual environments is evident in their wide range of applications. In education, they provide interactive learning experiences, enabling students to engage in simulations for practical learning experiences in safe, controlled environments. For instance, medical students can perform virtual surgeries, or history students can explore reconstructions of historical sites. In business, these environments are used for training, remote meetings, and as virtual workspaces, enabling seamless collaboration regardless of physical location [42]. The entertainment industry, particularly through gaming, continues to explore the limits of these technologies, offering increasingly immersive experiences.

The Role of Game Engines in Shaping 3D Environments

Central to the development of 3D virtual environments are game engines, software frameworks used for the creation and development of video games. Game engines provide the necessary tools and features to develop the complex interactive and dynamic environments found in modern games[44]. They handle graphics rendering, physics calculations, audio management, scripting, and artificial intelligence, all crucial for creating an engaging virtual world.

Game engines are much more than just tools for game development; they are the technological backbone that drives the creation and execution of interactive 3D environments. At their core, game engines comprise several key components: a rendering engine for 2D or 3D graphics, a physics engine for managing physical simulations, a sound engine for audio, and an artificial intelligence module for non-player character behavior [42]. These engines also provide development tools for scripting, animation, and scene creation, greatly simplifying the complex process of game development.

Advancements in Game Engine Technology

Recent years have seen remarkable advancements in game engine technology. Realtime rendering capabilities have dramatically improved, allowing for photorealistic graphics and dynamic environmental effects. Physics engines have become more sophisticated, enabling more realistic simulations of movement, collision, and material interaction. The incorporation of AI in game engines has also evolved, leading to more lifelike and adaptive NPC behaviors, enhancing the overall gaming experience.

Impact on the Gaming Industry and Beyond

The evolution of game engines has had a profound impact on the gaming industry. These engines have democratized game development, making it more accessible to independent developers and small studios. The high level of realism and interactivity provided by modern game engines has also led to more immersive gaming experiences, increasing player engagement and expanding the industry's audience [45].

Cross-Industry Applications

Moreover, the influence of game engines extends beyond the gaming industry. They are increasingly used in film and television for pre-visualization and virtual production, as seen in projects that use real-time rendering for complex scenes. In architecture and engineering, game engines are utilized for virtual walkthroughs of buildings and structures, providing a valuable tool for design and client presentations [46]. In education, they offer interactive and engaging ways to learn complex subjects through virtual simulations.[47]

The Future of Game Engines

Looking ahead, the future of game engines is closely tied to emerging technologies like virtual reality (VR) and augmented reality (AR) [48]. These technologies will likely drive the next wave of innovation in game engines, leading to even more immersive and interactive experiences. As game engines become more powerful and user-friendly, we can expect to see them used in a wider range of applications, from training and simulation to interactive media and beyond.

Popular Game Engines

Unity: Renowned for its user-friendly interface and versatility, Unity [49] is widely used for both 2D and 3D game development. It is popular among independent developers due to its robust set of features, including an extensive asset store, and its ability to deploy games across multiple platforms[50].

Unreal Engine: Developed by Epic Games, Unreal Engine is known for its powerful graphics capabilities, making it a favorite for creating high-fidelity games. It uses the Blueprint visual scripting language, allowing developers to create complex game mechanics without extensive coding [51].

CryEngine: Famed for its advanced graphics and realistic physics, CryEngine is used in many first-person shooter games. It offers cutting-edge rendering capabilities, including dynamic lighting and realistic environmental effects [52].

Chapter 3. State of the Art

The Evolution of E-Learning Platforms

Transition to Advanced E-Learning Solutions

As the digital landscape evolved, so did LMS technologies. Early systems were primarily repository-based, focusing on content delivery and management. However, the advent of Web 2.0 technologies ushered in an era of interactive and collaborative learning [12]. Modern LMS platforms now incorporate a range of functionalities such as forums, wikis, blogs, and social media integration, reflecting a shift towards more participatory, learner-centered models of e-learning. Open e-Class LMS exemplifies this transition. Originating as a basic content management system, it has progressively incorporated tools for interactive communication, assessment, and collaboration. Its open-source nature allows for continuous improvements and adaptations, making it a dynamic tool in the realm of e-learning[11].

The Role of LMS in Modern Education

Today's LMS platforms are expected to support a range of learning styles and pedagogical approaches. This includes catering to the needs of visual, auditory, and kinesthetic learners, as well as supporting both synchronous and asynchronous learning activities [9]. The flexibility of systems like Open e-Class enables educators to tailor their teaching strategies to meet diverse learner needs. The role of LMS extends beyond purely online learning. In blended learning environments, LMSs serve as a bridge between traditional classroom activities and online resources, creating a cohesive learning experience. This integration is critical in modern education, where digital literacy is increasingly important[3].

Current Challenges and Limitations

A persistent challenge in LMS usage is maintaining high levels of student engagement and motivation. Traditional LMS platforms often lack the interactive and immersive elements that can captivate learners, leading to lower participation and completion rates in online courses. While systems like Open e-Class offer customization, there is still a need for greater adaptability to various educational contexts and learner demographics[53]. Customization options are often limited to superficial aspects, rather than allowing for deep structural changes that could better support specific learning objectives. The integration of emerging technologies such as AI, AR/VR, and 3D visualization remains limited in many LMS platforms. These technologies have the potential to transform the learning experience by making it more engaging, interactive, and personalized.

Future Directions in LMS Development

The future of LMS lies in embracing innovative technologies that can transform the elearning experience. This includes not only integrating multimedia and interactive content but also leveraging advanced technologies like artificial intelligence for personalized learning paths and predictive analytics. Future LMS platforms need to evolve into more than just content delivery systems [23]. They should foster a collaborative learning ecosystem, where students can engage with peers, instructors, and external resources in a seamless and intuitive manner. An important aspect of future LMS development will be enhancing accessibility and inclusivity, ensuring that learners with diverse needs and backgrounds can equally benefit from digital learning environments.

Comprehensive Overview of Learning Management Systems

A Learning Management System (LMS) is a software application that provides a framework for handling all aspects of the learning process – it's where you house, deliver, and track your training content. The origin of LMS dates back to the 1990s, coinciding with the rise of the internet. These early systems were primarily used to manage students and learning resources in higher education and corporate settings [24]. Today, an LMS can be used in various environments, from schools and universities to workplaces and training centers. The primary functions of an LMS include managing user registration, delivering learning content, tracking progress and performance, and reporting on user activity.

Historical Development and Evolution of LMS

The evolution of LMS has been driven by technological advancements and the changing needs of learners and educators. In its initial stages, an LMS was a simple tool for managing learners and resources. Over time, these systems have evolved into more sophisticated platforms. Key milestones in this evolution include the introduction of SCORM (Sharable Content Object Reference Model) standards, which revolutionized how course content could be created and shared, and the emergence of mobile learning, allowing learners to access content anytime, anywhere [54].

Open e-Class LMS: A Case Study in E-Learning Platform Evolution

Focusing on Open e-Class LMS, an open-source platform, reveals much about the direction in which e-learning platforms are heading [53]. This platform is tailored for higher education but can be adapted for other learning environments. It emphasizes a user-friendly interface, scalability, and flexibility, illustrating the trend towards more adaptable and inclusive e-learning solutions. The development of Open e-Class LMS, like many of its contemporaries, signifies a shift from rigid, one-way content delivery to interactive, student-centered learning experiences [11].

Current Challenges and Limitations of Traditional LMS

Despite their evolution, traditional LMS platforms face significant challenges. A primary concern is the lack of personalization; traditional systems often do not cater to the diverse learning needs and preferences of individual learners. This can lead to a disengaged and ineffective learning experience. Additionally, many LMSs struggle with integration issues, finding it challenging to seamlessly connect with other tools and systems used within educational or corporate ecosystems. User interface complexity and insufficient collaborative features further limit the effectiveness of these systems[55].

The Future of LMS: Trends and Emerging Technologies:

The future of LMS is likely to be shaped by several key trends and emerging technologies. Adaptive learning technologies, which tailor learning experiences to individual needs, are becoming increasingly important [3]. The integration of Artificial Intelligence (AI) and Machine Learning (ML) promises more personalized and efficient learning paths. Additionally, the rise of social learning, where collaboration and interaction are integral parts of the learning process, is expected to influence LMS development. Another significant trend is the increasing importance of data analytics in LMS, allowing for more informed decisions about course design and learner support[1], [53].

The Concept of 3D Visualization in Educational Contexts

3D visualization in educational settings transcends traditional teaching methods by providing an immersive, interactive, and engaging learning experience. This innovative approach uses three-dimensional graphics to create dynamic environments and detailed models, significantly enriching the learning process. It particularly benefits disciplines that require a deep understanding of spatial relationships and complex structures, such as biology, architecture, and engineering [1].

Specific Applications of 3D Visualization in E-Learning

One notable application of 3D visualization in e-learning is the platform "Second Life." This virtual world environment has been used by educational institutions for various purposes, including language learning, medical training, and architectural design. In "Second Life," educators can create simulated environments relevant to their course content, allowing students to engage in experiential learning activities that would be impossible or impractical in the real world [6]. Another example is "ZSpace," a technology firm that specializes in immersive learning experiences through AR/VR solutions. ZSpace offers a range of educational applications, particularly in K-12 and higher education, where students can interact with 3D models using stylus and head-tracking technology [56]. This approach has been particularly effective in STEM education, where complex concepts can be visualized and manipulated in a virtual 3D space.

Real-World Implementations and Case Studies

The University of Nottingham's "Mixed Reality Lab" showcases an exemplary implementation of 3D visualization. They have developed several projects where 3D environments play a crucial role in enhancing learning. One such project is the "Chemistry Lab" VR experience, which allows students to conduct virtual chemistry experiments in a 3D laboratory setting. This approach has been beneficial in reducing the constraints of physical lab resources while providing a safe and controlled environment for experimentation [57]. Another significant implementation is at the Stanford University School of Medicine, where they use the "Stanford Virtual Heart" program. This project utilizes VR to teach medical students and healthcare professionals about complex cardiac conditions and surgeries. Through this immersive 3D environment, learners gain a deeper understanding of heart anatomy and can practice surgical procedures in a risk-free setting [58].

Challenges and Future Directions

While the implementation of 3D visualization in e-learning offers numerous benefits, it also presents challenges. These include the need for significant technological infrastructure, potential accessibility issues, and ensuring that such advanced tools are effectively integrated into the curriculum [59]. Additionally, there is ongoing research on improving the realism and interactivity of these 3D environments to further enhance the learning experience.

Gamification in Education

Gamification in education refers to the integration of game design elements in nongame educational contexts. This approach seeks to harness the motivational power of games and apply it to the learning process. The core principles of gamification in education include points, badges, leaderboards, challenges, and levels, which are used to engage and motivate students. Gamification aims to create a dynamic learning environment that fosters interaction, competition, and achievement [2].

The Psychological Basis of Gamification in Enhancing Motivation and Engagement

The effectiveness of gamification in education is deeply rooted in psychological theories. Principles from behavioral psychology, such as reinforcement and feedback, play a crucial role. Positive reinforcement through rewards and recognition encourages students to engage more deeply with the material. Cognitive psychology also informs gamification strategies, especially in how challenges and problem-solving activities cater to the natural human desire for growth and achievement. The engagement loop in gamification – consisting of challenge, action, and reward – aligns with the intrinsic motivation theories proposed by Deci and Ryan, which emphasize autonomy, competence, and relatedness as key motivators [60].

The Impact of Gamification in Educational Settings

Numerous studies have highlighted the positive effects of gamification in educational contexts. Research often points to increased student engagement, improved motivation, and enhanced learning outcomes [31]. For instance, a study by Hamari et al. demonstrated that gamified learning environments significantly boost motivation and engagement among students. Another significant finding in the literature is the potential of gamification to cater to diverse learning styles, thereby making education more inclusive.

Examples of Successful Gamification Implementations in Learning Management Systems (LMS)

Several LMS platforms have successfully integrated gamification. For example, platforms like Moodle and Blackboard have incorporated game-based elements like points, badges, and leaderboards. These features enable instructors to set up gamified courses, where

students earn rewards for completing assignments, participating in discussions, and achieving high scores[55].

Focus on Applications and Case Studies

One notable application of gamification in education is the language learning app Duolingo. Duolingo uses a variety of game-like elements such as points (XP), streaks, and levels to keep learners engaged and motivated. Its success lies in its ability to turn language learning, often perceived as a challenging task, into a fun and addictive experience. The app provides immediate feedback, rewards progress, and adapts to the individual's learning pace, demonstrating the principles of gamification effectively applied in an educational context [61].

Another example is Classcraft, an educational technology platform that transforms classroom dynamics by gamifying learning. In Classcraft, students create characters, earn points for academic achievements and positive behavior, and work in teams to complete quests and challenges. This approach has been shown to increase student engagement, improve classroom behavior, and enhance collaborative learning. These examples illustrate how gamification, when thoughtfully implemented, can transform educational experiences. By incorporating elements that resonate with the digital generation, these applications not only make learning more enjoyable but also more effective [62].

Integrating 3D Visualization and Gamification in Learning Environments

In recent years, there has been a growing interest in the convergence of 3D visualization and gamification within educational contexts. This integration represents a novel approach to learning, leveraging the immersive qualities of 3D environments combined with the motivational aspects of game-like elements [41]. The intersection of these two technologies has opened new avenues for enhancing the educational experience, making learning more engaging, interactive, and effective.

Theoretical Foundations and Models

The theoretical underpinnings of combining 3D visualization with gamification are grounded in several educational theories. Constructivism, which emphasizes active learning through experience and interaction, forms a core part of this integration. 3D environments provide a platform where learners can interact with complex concepts in a more tangible and meaningful way [63]. Additionally, the principles of gamification, derived from behavioral psychology, add a layer of motivation and engagement through elements like points, badges, and leaderboards. Models such as the ARCS model of motivational design (Attention, Relevance, Confidence, and Satisfaction) are often employed to structure these gamified elements in a way that maximizes learner engagement and retention [64].

Applications and Implementations

One notable application of this integration is seen in the domain of medical education. Platforms like 'BioDigital Human' exemplify the effective use of 3D visualization and gamification. This tool allows medical students to interact with a detailed 3D model of the human body. Gamification elements are integrated to enhance the learning process, such as quizzes and interactive challenges, which help students in memorizing and understanding complex anatomical structures and physiological processes [65].

Another example is found in language learning applications. Tools like 'Mondly,' which incorporates 3D environments and gamified lessons, offer a more immersive experience for language learners. Users can engage in conversations within a 3D world, improving their language skills in a context that mimics real-life interactions. The gamified components, including points and levels, keep learners motivated by tracking their progress and encouraging consistent practice [66].

Synergies and Challenges

The synergy between 3D visualization and gamification in educational applications lies in their ability to complement each other's strengths. 3D environments provide a rich, immersive context for exploration and learning, making abstract concepts more concrete. When this is coupled with gamified elements, it not only enhances engagement but also offers a structured way for learners to track their progress, receive immediate feedback, and stay motivated [48].

However, integrating these technologies also presents challenges. The development of such sophisticated tools requires significant resources and expertise in both 3D modeling and game design. Additionally, ensuring accessibility and usability for a diverse range of learners can be challenging. There's also the risk of gamification overshadowing the learning content, where learners might focus more on the game elements rather than the educational material [67].

In conclusion, the integration of 3D visualization and gamification in learning environments represents a significant advancement in educational technology. It aligns with modern educational theories, providing an interactive and engaging learning experience. While there are challenges in implementation and design, the potential benefits in terms of enhanced learner engagement and effectiveness make it a promising field for future development. As technology continues to evolve, we can expect to see more sophisticated and effective applications of this integration in various educational domains.

Definition and Characteristics of Serious Games

Serious games, a term coined in the early 21st century, are games designed for a primary purpose other than pure entertainment. These games often simulate real-world events or processes to solve problems. In the educational context, they are distinguished by several key characteristics [68]:

Educational Intent: Unlike conventional video games, serious games are designed primarily to educate or train the user. They often incorporate learning objectives aligned with educational standards.

Engagement and Motivation: Leveraging the interactive and engaging nature of games, they motivate learners through challenges, instant feedback, and the joy of achievement.

Realism and Simulation: Many serious games use realistic scenarios and environments to provide practical, hands-on experience in a safe, controlled setting.

Adaptive Learning: These games often adapt to the individual learner's pace and style, offering personalized educational experiences.

Role and Impact of Serious Games in Educational Settings

Serious games have shown significant potential in educational settings by offering an immersive learning experience. They encourage active participation, critical thinking, and problem-solving skills. Studies have shown that serious games can lead to improved retention rates and a deeper understanding of complex subjects. They also foster collaboration and communication skills when designed for group activities [69].

The Use of the Unity3D Engine in Developing Educational Games

Unity3D has emerged as a popular platform for developing serious games due to its versatility, user-friendly interface, and robust set of development tools. Its ability to support both 2D and 3D game development makes it ideal for creating a wide range of educational content. Additionally, Unity's cross-platform compatibility allows these games to be accessible on various devices, enhancing their reach and effectiveness.

Examples of Serious Games in LMS and Their Outcomes

Learning Management Systems (LMS) have integrated serious games to provide a more dynamic learning environment. For example, "SimSchool" is a classroom simulation game that helps teachers practice classroom management and instructional strategies. Studies involving SimSchool have shown that it effectively enhances teachers' decision-making skills and their understanding of student diversity [70].

Case Studies and Practical Applications

A notable example of serious games in education is "Duolingo," a language learning platform. Duolingo uses gamification elements like points, levels, and immediate feedback to make language learning more engaging and effective. Its success is evident in its vast user base and the positive reviews regarding its impact on language proficiency [71].

Another example is "Zoo U," a game designed to help children develop social skills. It presents players with real-life social scenarios, teaching them to navigate complex emotional and social dynamics. Research on Zoo U has indicated improvements in children's social knowledge and skills post-interaction with the game [72].

Focus on Apps and Implementations

One groundbreaking implementation of serious games in education is the "Classcraft" platform. Classcraft transforms the classroom experience by turning learning into an adventure. Teachers use the app to apply game mechanics to their curriculum, turning assignments and classroom activities into quests and challenges. The platform has been praised for increasing student engagement, participation, and overall academic performance [62].

Chapter 4. A Gamified LMS Design

Game Design

The game design section of this thesis outlines the conceptual and practical aspects of developing a 3D visualization of the Open e-Class Learning Management System (LMS). The primary aim is to gamify the learning experience, offering an immersive and interactive environment that enhances student engagement and motivation.

Game Overview

The game transforms the traditional interface of the Open e-Class LMS into a dynamic 3D environment. This reimagining serves the dual purpose of increasing student motivation through gamification and providing a more intuitive and engaging way to interact with course materials. The 3D visualization is not merely a cosmetic upgrade but a functional shift in how users engage with the LMS.

Environment and Structure

Central Hub: Upon logging in, users find themselves in a central hub, a personalized space that represents the user's virtual home within the game. This hub is tailored to each user, displaying all the courses they are enrolled in within the Open e-Class system. The design of the hub is akin to a tranquil forest, complete with a house, trees, and a river, created using low-poly graphics for broad compatibility and performance efficiency.

Classroom Environment: When a user selects a course from the central hub, an animation transports their character to a classroom environment. This environment is specifically designed for the selected course, containing all relevant materials and interactive elements, such as announcements, a calendar, and quizzes.

Navigation and Interaction

User Experience: The game is designed with a focus on user experience. Navigation within the game is intuitive, with the central hub acting as a starting point for exploration. Interaction with various elements of the course, such as announcements or calendar events, is done through the user's avatar in the 3D space.

Course Selection: A unique aspect of the game is the course selection process. When a user chooses a course from the central hub, a school bus animation signifies the transition to the classroom, enhancing the immersive experience.

Classroom Dynamics: In the classroom, each course's content is transformed into interactive 3D objects. This could include virtual blackboards for announcements, 3D representations of calendar events, and interactive quizzes. The design of each classroom varies based on the course's content, providing a unique and tailored experience for each subject.

Gamification Elements

Reward System: The game incorporates a reward system to further motivate students. As they interact with different elements and complete tasks or quizzes, they earn rewards, which could be in the form of virtual badges, points, or progress indicators.

Challenges and Progression: To maintain engagement, the game introduces challenges and a sense of progression. This could be through leveling up in the game, unlocking new content, or receiving feedback on quiz performances.

Technical Aspects

Hardware Compatibility: The use of low-poly graphics ensures that the game runs smoothly on a variety of modern computing devices, making it accessible to a wide range of users. Input Methods: The game is designed to be controlled via keyboard and mouse, ensuring ease of use for the typical computer user.

Educational Objectives

The primary educational objective of the game is to transform the passive experience of traditional e-learning into an active and enjoyable journey. By doing so, the game aims to address the common challenge of declining student motivation in e-learning environments. The immersive and interactive nature of the game encourages deeper engagement with the course material, making learning both effective and enjoyable.

Game Mechanics and Elements

The core of the game's mechanics revolves around user interaction within a 3D space, simulating a virtual learning environment. These mechanics are designed to mimic real-world educational interactions but in a more engaging and gamified manner.

Interaction with 3D Objects

Course Announcements: Announcements are represented as 3D bulletin boards or digital screens within the game. Users can approach these boards to view updates, mirroring the act of reading announcements in a physical classroom or online forum.

Calendars and Deadlines: Calendars are visualized as interactive objects. When a user approaches a calendar, it expands to show important dates, deadlines, and events related to their courses. This interactive feature aims to keep students informed and engaged with their schedule in a visually appealing manner.

Transition and Transportation

Central Hub to Classroom: A distinctive feature of the game is the transition from the central hub to specific classrooms. This is accomplished through an animation showing a school bus journey, symbolizing the shift from a general learning space to a focused classroom environment. This animation not only serves as a visual treat but also reinforces the concept of moving between different educational spaces.

Classroom Interaction

Course-Specific Materials: Once in the classroom, the user finds a variety of interactive elements related to the specific course they have selected. These elements are tailored to the course content and include:

Interactive Blackboards: Displaying key information, notes, and other relevant content in an engaging, dynamic format.

Quizzes as Mini-Games: Quizzes are presented in the form of mini-games, making the assessment process more enjoyable and less daunting. These could take various forms, such as multiple-choice questions, drag-and-drop matching activities, or even small puzzle games that test the user's understanding of the course material.

Gamification Techniques

Reward System: To further motivate students, the game includes a reward system where users earn points, badges, or other forms of recognition for their participation and achievements within the game.

Progress Tracking: Users can track their progress through visual indicators, such as a progress bar or a series of levels, providing a sense of accomplishment and encouraging continued engagement.

User Interface and Navigation

Intuitive Design: The game's user interface is designed to be intuitive and easy to navigate, ensuring that users can focus on learning without being hindered by complicated controls. The game mechanics are not just for engagement but are carefully integrated with the educational

objectives. Each interactive element is designed to enhance the understanding and retention of course materials, making learning an active rather than passive experience.

World Environment Design

Central Hub

Concept and Design: The Central Hub is conceptualized as a serene forest, complete with a house, trees, and a flowing river. This tranquil setting serves as a metaphorical representation of the user's personal educational journey and a relaxing space from where they embark on their learning quests.

Low-Poly Graphics: To ensure broad compatibility and optimal performance across various devices, the Central Hub is created using low-poly graphics. This style not only aids in performance but also adds a unique, stylized aesthetic to the game.

Functionality: As the primary interface, the Central Hub displays all the courses the user is enrolled in. It acts as a personalized dashboard, where each course is represented by distinct, interactive 3D objects — such as a bulletin board for announcements.

Navigation and Accessibility: Navigation within the Central Hub is designed to be intuitive, allowing users to easily explore and interact with the various elements. Accessibility features are incorporated to ensure the space is user-friendly for all learners, including those with limited gaming experience.

Classroom Environment

Room Design: The classroom environment is visualized as a large, segmented room. Each segment or area within the classroom is dedicated to a specific aspect of the course, such as announcements, calendars, or educational content.

Announcements Area: Designed to display course updates and important information. This area mimics a real-world classroom setting with bulletin boards or digital displays.

Calendar Section: Allows users to view and interact with important dates and deadlines, represented through a visually engaging 3D calendar.

Document Access: A section dedicated to course documents and materials, where users can access and interact with texts, images, and videos related to the course.

Quiz and Game Zone: Here, quizzes and assessments are transformed into mini games, providing a fun and interactive method for testing knowledge and understanding.

Adaptive Design: The classroom environment is adaptive, changing according to the specific course selected. This customization adds depth to the learning experience, as each course offers a unique visual and interactive journey.

Integration with Educational Content

Purposeful Design: The design of both the Central Hub and the Classroom environments is purposefully tied to educational objectives. The immersive and interactive nature of these spaces is intended to enhance the engagement and retention of course material.



Figure 4. Proposed application's Workflow diagram

Workflow of User Interaction in the Game:

User Login: The user starts the game and logs in.

Arrival at Central Hub: Upon successful login, the user arrives at the Central Hub, the main interactive environment.

Course Display: The Central Hub displays all the courses the user is enrolled in.

Course Selection: The user selects a course from those displayed.

Transition Animation: After selecting a course, an animation plays showing the transition from the Central Hub to the Classroom (e.g., school bus journey).

Arrival in Classroom: The user arrives in the classroom environment specific to the selected course.

Interaction in Classroom: In the Classroom, the user can interact with different elements like:

- Announcements
- Calendar
- Course Materials
- Quiz Games

Engagement with Specific Elements: The user engages with specific elements (e.g., reading announcements, checking calendar dates, accessing materials, participating in quizzes).

Feedback and Rewards: Based on interactions, the user receives feedback or rewards (e.g., quiz results, points).

Return to Central Hub: The user can choose to return to the Central Hub to select another course or end the session. (See Figure 4)

Software Design

System Architecture

This architecture diagram Figure 5 represents a system architecture of the proposed application involving three main areas, namely, the Unity Engine, an API developed with Spring Boot in Java, and an Open e-Class Database. Below, a detailed description of each component and their interactions within the system can be found:

Unity Engine: This package represents the core of a gaming or simulation application. It includes three main components:

3D Rendering: Responsible for rendering the visual aspects of the application, such as environments, objects, and animations.

User Interface (UI): Manages the user interface elements like menus, buttons, and other interactive components. There is a data flow relationship from the 3D Rendering to the User Interface, indicating that the 3D Rendering component provides data or visuals to the UI.

Game Logic: Handles the core logic of the application, including game rules, player interactions, and the overall flow of the application. The UI communicates user actions to the Game Logic, indicating that user interactions with the UI influence the game's behavior.

API (Spring Boot with Java): This package represents the server-side components developed using Spring Boot, a Java framework. It includes:



Figure 5. System Architecture Diagram

Authentication: Manages user authentication processes, ensuring secure access to the application. This component validates access with the "Other Information" in the database.

Data Fetching: Responsible for retrieving data from the database. The Game Logic component from the Unity Engine requests data from this component, indicating that the game's logic depends on data retrieved from the server.

Data Sending: Handles the sending or updating of information in the database. It has a direct interaction with the "Course Content" in the database, indicating its role in updating course-related information.

Open e-Class Database: Represents the database used by the application. It contains:

User Data: Stores information related to the users of the application.

Course Content: Contains the course-related information that is likely used within the educational or training aspects of the application.

Other Information: A general category for additional data stored in the database, which is accessed by the Authentication component for validating user access.

System Components

Figure 6 shows a sample package diagram containing the system's components. Later in this section a detailed documentation of each component within the packages is provided. The system comprises six packages with almost every package consisting of three components.

Learning Management System	Game Development	API Development	User Interface Design
C Open eClass Platform	C Game Design Concepts	C Technology Stack	CAccessibility and Usability
C Content Management	CAsset and Interaction Design	© Data Integration	
Game-Based Learning Experience	Technical Architecture		
C Educational Game Mechanics	Security and Data Management		

Figure 6. Application Package Diagram

Learning Management System (LMS) - Open eClass Platform

This component forms the backbone of our learning management system. The Open eClass platform is chosen for its robust educational tools and resources, providing a versatile environment for online learning.

LMS Integration and Setup

This segment addresses the integration process of the Open eClass platform with other essential systems and tools. It encompasses the initial setup procedures, ensuring the platform aligns with our specific educational and operational requirements.

Content Management

Focusing on the administration of educational content, this element is pivotal in creating, organizing, updating, and distributing course materials. It ensures a seamless flow of information and resources within the LMS.

Game Development

Game Design Concepts

This crucial component underlines the foundational ideas and principles driving the game development process. It includes the creative aspects, like storyboarding and conceptualization, essential in shaping the game's narrative and mechanics.

Unity Game Engine

Our project utilizes the Unity Game Engine, renowned for its versatility in game development. This choice allows us to leverage advanced programming and graphics rendering.

API Development

Technology Stack

Representing our project's technological backbone, this component details the combination of programming languages, frameworks, and tools employed in API development. The selection of this stack was based on the criteria of performance, compatibility, user-friendliness, and future-proof technology trends.

Spring Boot with Java

We utilize Spring Boot with Java for creating robust, stand-alone applications and APIs. This framework supports our needs for scalable, enterprise-grade API development. Additionally, Spring Boot's extensive ecosystem and auto-configuration simplify deployment and maintenance.

Data Integration

This segment is critical for ensuring seamless data flow and integration. It involves managing the exchange and manipulation of data across different systems, enhancing the system's interoperability. This process also ensures data consistency and accuracy throughout the entire network of systems.

Game-Based Learning Experience

Game Objectives and Dynamics

This area focuses on translating educational goals into engaging game dynamics. It involves crafting game elements that are not only educational but also captivating for the users.

User Interaction Design

Key to our user experience, this component deals with the design of the game's user interface and the overall interaction flow. It ensures that the game is intuitive and user-friendly.

Educational Game Mechanics

This aspect delves into the mechanics that make the game both educational and enjoyable. It includes innovative features that promote interactive learning.

Technical Architecture

Development Workflow

This part outlines the various stages and processes of development, from initial planning to final deployment. It encapsulates the methodologies and best practices guiding our development approach.

Scripting and Logic

Central to the functionality of our system, this component encompasses the programming scripts and logical sequences that drive the game and other system components.

User Interface Design

UI Elements and Navigation

This component is dedicated to the aesthetic and functional aspects of the user interface, including layout design and navigational elements, ensuring a cohesive and appealing visual experience.

Accessibility and Usability

Aiming for inclusivity, this part emphasizes designing the system to be user-friendly and accessible to users. It underlines our commitment to providing an intuitive and barrier-free user experience.

System Requirements and Platform

The game is meticulously engineered to be accessible on a wide range of modern computing platforms, offering a seamless gaming experience across various devices. This comprehensive section outlines the system requirements Table 1. *Hardware Requirements* for both the client (game) side and the server (Open e-Class platform) side, emphasizing the compatibility and performance expectations. Additionally, it delves into the platform compatibility, which is significantly enhanced by Unity's versatile nature, enabling smooth operation on diverse hardware configurations. This in-depth information ensures users and administrators understand the technical prerequisites and the game's adaptability to different technological environments.

Title	Requirement
Operating System	Compatible with major operating systems such as
	Windows, macOS, and Linux
Processor	Minimum of Intel Core i3 or equivalent
Memory	At least 4 GB RAM
Graphics	Integrated graphics with support for OpenGL 3.0
	or higher
Storage	: Minimum of 500 MB free disk space
Network	Stable internet connection for accessing the Open
	e-Class content

Table 1.	Hardware	Requirements
----------	----------	--------------

Chapter 5. Implementation

Overview

This chapter delineates the implementation of a 3D gamified learning environment integrated with the Open e-Class Learning Management System (LMS). Developed using the Unity game engine, the project leverages advanced technologies and programming methodologies to create an immersive and interactive educational experience. The implementation details encompass the choice of the development platform, graphic design strategies, programming languages, and API integration.

Unity Game Engine

Unity was selected for its advanced capabilities in 3D rendering, its user-friendly interface, and its extensive support for game development. Its compatibility with various platforms and its robust asset store were also key factors in its selection. The game's development in Unity involved several stages, including designing the 3D models, scripting the game mechanics in C#, and implementing the user interface. The graphical aspects, including the creation of textures, animations, and lighting, were meticulously designed to create an engaging and interactive environment. Unity's integrated development environment (IDE) provides a seamless workflow for creating and testing 3D scenes, scripting game logic, and implementing user interfaces. This environment facilitated the rapid development and iteration of game components, accelerating the overall development process. The game's core mechanics, including user interactions, scene transitions, and data handling, were programmed in C#. This language's integration with Unity enabled efficient scripting of complex game functionalities and interactions.

Scene Development and Dynamic Content

Central Hub and Classroom Scenes: The game environment is divided into two primary scenes: the Central Hub and the Classroom. The Central Hub serves as an interactive starting point for users, from where they can navigate to different courses. The classroom scene adapts its content based on the specific course selected, offering a tailored educational experience. These scenes were developed to be both visually appealing and functionally intuitive, enhancing the overall user experience.

Animations and User Interaction

Natural Avatar Movement: To augment user engagement, special attention was given to the animations of the 3D avatar, particularly the walking animation. Ensuring natural and fluid movement was paramount in creating an enjoyable and immersive experience. These animations enhance the game's interactivity, making the virtual environment more lively and engaging.

User Interface (UI) Design: A comprehensive UI was developed to display e-Class elements effectively within the game. The UI design focused on ensuring ease of interaction while maintaining an enjoyable and interactive experience. The integration of educational content within the game interface was carefully balanced to provide a seamless and intuitive user experience.

API Development for Data Integration

The API was developed using Spring Boot, a robust framework that simplifies the development and deployment of Java-based applications. The choice of Java was due to its stability, scalability, and extensive library support. The API's primary function is to facilitate a secure and efficient communication channel between the Unity game and the Open e-Class database. This involves authenticating access, querying the database for specific course data, and transmitting this data to the game in a usable format. This API facilitated the retrieval and display of personalized course data, dynamically adjusting the game content based on the user's profile and course enrollments. Dynamic content configuration is a key feature of the implementation. Through the integration of Unity and the Open e-Class database via the Spring Boot API, the game content is personalized in real-time. This ensures that each user's experience is unique and relevant to their educational journey.

Chapter 6. Results & Discussion

The 3D visualization game developed for the Open e-Class Learning Management System (LMS) aimed to revolutionize the e-learning landscape by integrating gamification into the educational process. This chapter delves into the detailed outcomes of each game component, reflecting on how these elements collectively contribute to enhancing the learning experience.

	83
Καλωσόρισες στην οπτικοποίηση του eClass !! Πλημηρολύμησε το ID ακοι και κάτιστε CIC ναι να	
User ID	

(a) User Login



(b) 3D Environment Unity Scene



Environmental Design and Structure

Central Hub

Upon logging into the game Figure 7, users are greeted the Central Hub. The Central Hub conceptualized as a serene forest-themed environment, serves as the main navigation point for users. The design's low-poly graphics were chosen for their broad compatibility with diverse hardware, ensuring smooth performance. This tranquil setting, blending aesthetic appeal with functionality, aimed to create a welcoming and calming entry point for learners Figure 8. It successfully served as a personalized space where users could view and select their enrolled courses, fostering a sense of ownership and connection to their learning journey.



(a)



(b)

Figure 8. Central Hub (a) without calendar, (b) with calendar

For instance, a bulletin board symbolizes course announcements. Users can approach and interact with this board, unveiling the latest updates and information relevant to their courses. Another key interactive element is the calendar Figure 9. This feature provides users with an overview of upcoming deadlines and important dates. By interacting with this 3D element students can keep track of their academic schedules within the immersive environment, blending the utility of a traditional calendar with the engagement of a 3D visualization. One of the most innovative features is the bus stop, which serves as the gateway to the classroom environment. When a user selects a course, they are visually and interactively transported to the respective classroom via a school bus animation.



(a)



(b)

Figure 9. Central Hub with open announcements (a) table, (b) calendar

The integration of these interactive elements within the Central Hub significantly elevates the user experience. It transforms the hub from a simple navigational tool into a

dynamic and engaging space where learning begins the moment a user logs in. Each interactive element, carefully designed to correspond with specific e-Class components, ensures that the users' interaction with the course material is both intuitive and enjoyable Figure 10.



Classroom Environment

(a)



(b)

Figure 10. Classroom Environment

The game features a singular, adaptable classroom environment that dynamically alters its content based on the selected course. This environment is enriched with interactive elements like announcements, calendars, and quizzes Figure 11, all tailored to align with the specific theme and content of each course. This innovative approach transformed how students interact with course materials. Instead of a static, one-size-fits-all classroom, users experienced a customized learning space that adjusted to the course's unique requirements. This dynamic adaptation not only maintained a fresh and engaging experience for each course but also demonstrated the potential of 3D environments in delivering personalized educational content.



(a) Quiz Selection



(b) Quiz Game Screen

Figure 11. Quiz Game Exercises

Navigation and Interaction

The emphasis on intuitive navigation was a cornerstone of the game design. The Central Hub's design played a pivotal role in facilitating easy, straightforward access to courses. The interaction within the game, mediated through a user-controlled avatar, was crafted to mimic

natural movements and behaviors in a 3D space, providing a more immersive and engaging learning experience. This design approach was successful in bridging the gap between virtual and real-world interactions, making the educational journey within the game feel more relatable and less intimidating for users.

Course Selection and Classroom Dynamics

The transition to the classroom via the school bus animation added a narrative layer to the game, effectively setting the stage for the learning session Figure 12. Inside the classroom, the presentation of course content through interactive 3D objects was a significant departure from traditional e-learning methods. This innovative display of content not only maintained user interest but also catered to different learning styles, allowing users to interact with and explore course materials in a more engaging and hands-on manner.

Gamification Elements

The inclusion of a reward system and challenges within the game was a strategic decision aimed at enhancing user motivation and engagement. The implementation of virtual badges and point systems for completing tasks or quizzes proved effective in encouraging ongoing interaction with the course material. This gamification aspect effectively tapped into the innate human drive for achievement and recognition, leading to a marked increase in participation and enthusiasm among users.

By integrating elements such as rewards, leaderboards, and challenges, the design significantly boosted user engagement and motivation. This approach not only fostered a competitive spirit but also cultivated a sense of community and collaboration. Users were more inclined to interact with the content and with each other, creating a dynamic and interactive learning environment. This heightened level of involvement resulted in a more enriching experience, as users were actively encouraged to explore, learn, and achieve within the platform.

Technical Aspects

The decision to use low-poly graphics and standard input methods (keyboard and mouse) was pivotal in making the game accessible to a broader user base. This approach ensured that users with varying levels of technical proficiency and varying qualities of hardware could access and enjoy the game without significant barriers. The game's technical framework was designed to be as inclusive as possible, catering to the diverse technological landscape of the user base.



(a)



(b)



(c)

Figure 12. Course Selection and transition to classroom

Educational Objectives and Impact

The transformation of traditional e-learning content into an active, gamified 3D environment marked a significant advancement in educational technology. The game's integration of educational content with interactive mechanics was aimed at enhancing both the understanding and retention of course materials. This approach fostered an active learning experience, where users were not just passive recipients of information but active participants in their educational journey. The successful integration of game mechanics with educational objectives demonstrated the potential of gamified learning in improving engagement and learning outcomes.

Pros and Cons of the Implementation

Pros:

Enhanced User Engagement: The immersive 3D environment and interactive elements significantly boost user interest and participation in the learning process.

Customized Learning Experience: The dynamic classroom environment adapts to the content of each course, providing a tailored educational experience.

Ease of Navigation: The intuitive design of the Central Hub and classroom facilitates easy access to course content and materials.

Active Learning Promotion: The game's design encourages active participation and interaction with course materials, enhancing learning retention.

Broad Accessibility: The use of low-poly graphics and standard input methods ensures the game is accessible on a wide range of devices.

Cons:

Initial Learning Curve for Users: The 3D navigation and game-like environment may present an initial challenge for users unfamiliar with such interfaces.

Balance between Education and Gamification: Finding the right equilibrium between educational content and gamification to maintain educational rigor is challenging.

Potential Accessibility Issues: The reliance on graphical and interactive elements might limit accessibility for users with certain disabilities.

Hardware Limitations: Users with lower-end hardware might experience performance issues, limiting the game's accessibility.

Chapter 7. Conclusion & Future Work

The exploration and implementation of a 3D gamified environment within the Open e-Class Learning Management System (LMS), as detailed in this thesis, represent a significant leap in the field of e-learning. This innovative approach transcends the conventional boundaries of digital education, offering a novel, interactive learning experience that effectively integrates 3D visualization with gamification techniques. The core objective of this project was to enhance student motivation and engagement, a goal that was pursued through the meticulous design and development of a user-centric, immersive educational platform.

Central to this endeavor was the creation of the Central Hub and the dynamic, adaptable classroom environment, both of which were instrumental in personalizing the learning experience. This dynamic and engaging approach to content presentation, coupled with the implementation of a comprehensive reward system and interactive challenges, successfully leveraged the principles of gamification. The result was a learning environment that encouraged active participation and deeper engagement with the course material.

Effective Integration of 3D Visualization and Gamification

The integration of 3D visualization and gamification into the Learning Management System (LMS) was executed with a keen focus on a user-centric design approach, prioritizing intuitive navigation and creating immersive learning environments. The centerpiece of this integration, the Central Hub, serves as more than just a navigational tool; it's a gateway to a new realm of learning, offering a serene and inviting atmosphere that contrasts sharply with the often-sterile environments of traditional LMS interfaces. This hub, along with the dynamically adaptable classroom environment, illustrates the potential of 3D spaces to be customized to fit the unique thematic and educational requirements of each course.

Further enhancing this immersive experience are the gamification elements embedded within the 3D environment. These elements, including a comprehensive reward system and a variety of interactive challenges, are not mere add-ons but are intricately woven into the very fabric of the learning experience. The design ensures that these gamification elements complement and enhance the educational content, rather than overshadowing or distracting from it. This integration strikes a delicate balance, leveraging the motivational aspects of gamification while maintaining the integrity and primary focus of the educational content. The reward systems and challenges are carefully calibrated to align with educational objectives, serving not only to engage students but also to reinforce and deepen their understanding of the course material.

Impact on Learning Experience and Outcomes

When compared to traditional LMS interfaces, the 3D gamified LMS introduced in this project has shown a significant impact on the learning experience and outcomes of students. The shift to an immersive 3D environment, rich with interactive elements, marks a departure from conventional learning methods, fostering an atmosphere where learning is not just a passive activity but an engaging, interactive journey. This environment, by its very nature, requires and encourages active participation from students, leading to deeper engagement with the material. Such engagement is critical in facilitating deeper learning and better retention of information, as it encourages students to interact with the content in a more meaningful way.

Comparatively, the 3D gamified LMS marked a considerable enhancement over traditional LMS interfaces. The immersive nature of the 3D environment, enriched with gamified elements, fostered a more engaging and interactive learning experience. Additionally, the project highlighted the immense potential and applicability of 3D visualization and gamification in educational settings, opening doors for future innovations in the realm of elearning. As technology continues to advance, the integration of such immersive and interactive elements in educational platforms is poised to redefine the landscape of digital learning, making it more effective, enjoyable, and accessible to a diverse range of learners.

Future Work

Expanding Interactivity and User Engagement

The implementation of the 3D gamified environment within the Open e-Class LMS lays a solid foundation for numerous future enhancements. As we look ahead, the potential for expanding the scope of this platform is vast, particularly in terms of user interactivity and collaborative learning experiences.

Multi-User Interaction and Personal Avatars: A significant advancement would be the introduction of a multi-user system where multiple students can log in simultaneously, each represented by their own personalized avatar. This feature would transform the learning environment from a solitary experience to a collaborative one, allowing students to interact with each other within the 3D space. Personalized avatars can foster a sense of identity and presence, making the learning experience more engaging and relatable.

Real-Time Communication and Chat Feature: Integrating a real-time communication channel, such as a chat feature, would greatly enhance the collaborative aspect of the platform. Students could discuss course materials, share insights, and engage in group activities within the 3D environment, fostering a sense of community and collaborative learning. This feature would also enable immediate feedback and peer-to-peer interaction, which are vital components of an effective learning environment.

Teacher-Led Video Conferencing: Another promising avenue is the integration of video conferencing capabilities directly within the game. This would enable teachers to conduct live sessions, lectures, or discussions, bridging the gap between traditional classroom settings and digital learning environments. Such a feature would not only enhance the learning experience but also provide a platform for live, interactive teaching sessions within the immersive 3D space.

Technological Advancements and Integration

Virtual Reality (VR) and Augmented Reality (AR): The integration of VR and AR technologies could significantly enhance the immersiveness of the 3D environment. VR, in particular, could offer a fully immersive educational experience, making learning even more engaging and impactful. AR, on the other hand, could be used to overlay educational content onto real-world environments, providing a unique and interactive learning experience.

Conclusion

The development of the 3D gamified environment within the Open e-Class LMS is just the beginning of a transformative journey in the realm of e-learning. The potential expansions and enhancements discussed here not only aim to enrich the learning experience but also to redefine the boundaries of digital education. As technology continues to evolve, so too will the opportunities to create more dynamic, interactive, and personalized learning environments.

References

- [1] N. Limantara, F. Lumban Gaol, and H. Prabowo, "Designing Gamified Learning Management Systems for Higher Education", doi: 10.18178/ijiet.2023.13.1.1776.
- I. Logothetis *et al.*, "Gamification Techniques Capitalizing on State-of-the-Art Technologies," *https://services.igi-global.com/resolvedoi/resolve.aspx?doi=10.4018/978-1-6684-4461-0.ch012*, pp. 206–229, Jan. 1AD, doi: 10.4018/978-1-6684-4461-0.CH012.
- S. Nizam Ismail, S. Hamid, M. Ahmad, A. Alaboudi, and N. Jhanjhi, "Exploring Students Engagement Towards the Learning Management System (LMS) Using Learning Analytics", doi: 10.32604/csse.2021.015261.
- B. K. Prahani *et al.*, "Blended web mobile learning (BWML) model to improve students' higher order thinking skills," *International Journal of Emerging Technologies in Learning*, vol. 15, no. 11, pp. 42–55, 2020, doi: 10.3991/IJET.V15I11.12853.
- [5] C. H. H. Tsay, A. Kofinas, and J. Luo, "Enhancing student learning experience with technologymediated gamification: An empirical study," *Comput Educ*, vol. 121, pp. 1–17, Jun. 2018, doi: 10.1016/j.compedu.2018.01.009.
- [6] R. Lorenzo-Alvarez, T. Rudolphi-Solero, M. J. Ruiz-Gomez, and F. Sendra-Portero, "Game-Based Learning in Virtual Worlds: A Multiuser Online Game for Medical Undergraduate Radiology Education within Second Life," *Anat Sci Educ*, vol. 13, no. 5, pp. 602–617, Sep. 2020, doi: 10.1002/ASE.1927.
- [7] Moodle, "Moodle." Accessed: Dec. 05, 2023. [Online]. Available: https://moodle.org
- [8] F. Salvetti, R. Gardner, R. Minehart, and B. Bertagni, "Digital Learning: Healthcare Training by Tele-Simulation and Online Cooperation," *Lecture Notes in Networks and Systems*, vol. 349 LNNS, pp. 304–311, 2022, doi: 10.1007/978-3-030-90677-1_29/COVER.
- [9] V. M. Bradley, "Learning Management System (LMS) Use with Online Instruction.," International Journal of Technology in Education, vol. 4, no. 1, pp. 68–92, 2021, doi: 10.46328/ijte.36.
- [10] G. C. Diniz, M. A. G. Silva, M. A. Gerosa, and I. Steinmacher, "Using Gamification to Orient and Motivate Students to Contribute to OSS Projects," in 2017 IEEE/ACM 10th International Workshop on Cooperative and Human Aspects of Software Engineering (CHASE), 2017, pp. 36–42. doi: 10.1109/CHASE.2017.7.
- [11] A. Pliakoura, G. Beligiannis, and A. Kontogeorgos, "Use and satisfaction with integrated learning management systems: the case of the Greek Open eClass," *International Journal of Innovation in Education*, vol. 6, no. 2, p. 128, 2020, doi: 10.1504/IJIIE.2020.108789.
- [12] "E-learning methodologies A guide for designing and developing e-learning courses," 2011.
- [13] Blackboard, "Blackboard." Accessed: Dec. 05, 2023. [Online]. Available: https://www.blackboard.com/en-mea/teaching-learning
- [14] Instructure, "Canvas." Accessed: Dec. 05, 2023. [Online]. Available: https://www.instructure.com/canvas

- [15] J. D. Swerzenski, "Central States Communication Association Critically Analyzing the Online Classroom: Blackboard, Moodle, Canvas, and the Pedagogy They Produce Central States Communication Association," *Journal of Communication Pedagogy 2021*, vol. 1, no. 1, pp. 51– 69, 2018, doi: 10.3316/INFORMIT.104916593591242.
- [16] V. Feitosa de Moura, C. Alexandre de Souza, and A. B. Noronha Viana, "The use of Massive Open Online Courses (MOOCs) in blended learning courses and the functional value perceived by students," *Comput Educ*, vol. 161, p. 104077, Feb. 2021, doi: 10.1016/J.COMPEDU.2020.104077.
- [17] V. Deepika, K. Soundariya, K. Karthikeyan, and G. Kalaiselvan, "'Learning from home': role of e-learning methodologies and tools during novel coronavirus pandemic outbreak," *Postgrad Med J*, vol. 97, no. 1151, pp. 590–597, Oct. 2021, doi: 10.1136/POSTGRADMEDJ-2020-137989.
- [18] H. Abuhassna *et al.*, "From Student's Experience: Does E-Learning Course Structure Influenced by Learner's Prior Experience, Background Knowledge, Autonomy, and Dialogue.," *Contemp Educ Technol*, vol. 14, no. 1, 2022, doi: 10.30935/cedtech/11386.
- [19] H. El Fazazi, M. Qbadou, K. Mansouri, and M. Elgarej, "Design of an Adaptive e-Learning System based on Multi-Agent Approach and Reinforcement Learning," *Engineering, Technology & Applied Science Research*, vol. 11, no. 1, pp. 6637–6644, Feb. 2021, doi: 10.48084/ETASR.3905.
- [20] V. Vagale, L. Niedrite, and S. Ignatjeva, "Application of the Recommended Learning Path in the Personalized Adaptive E-learning System," *Baltic J. Modern Computing*, vol. 8, no. 4, pp. 618– 637, 2020, doi: 10.22364/bjmc.2020.8.4.10.
- [21] Z. H. Bhat, "Does Learner Control Prove Effective in the Systems of e-Learning? A Review of Literature," *Lecture Notes in Educational Technology*, pp. 133–147, 2021, doi: 10.1007/978-981-16-1784-3_10/COVER.
- [22] B. Saputro and A. T. Susilowati, "Effectiveness of Learning Management System (LMS) On In-Network Learning System (SPADA) Based on Scientific," *Journal for the Education of Gifted Young Scientists*, vol. 7, no. 3, pp. 481–498, Sep. 2019, doi: 10.17478/JEGYS.606029.
- [23] F. Ibrahim, H. Susanto, P. K. Haghi, and D. Setiana, "Shifting Paradigm of Education Landscape in Time of the COVID-19 Pandemic: Revealing of a Digital Education Management Information System," *Applied System Innovation 2020, Vol. 3, Page 49*, vol. 3, no. 4, p. 49, Nov. 2020, doi: 10.3390/ASI3040049.
- [24] R. Rabiman, M. Nurtanto, and N. Kholifah, "Design and Development E-Learning System by Learning Management System (LMS) in Vocational Education.," *Online Submission*, vol. 9, no. 1, pp. 1059–1063, Jan. 2020, Accessed: Dec. 05, 2023. [Online]. Available: www.ijstr.org
- [25] MasterSoft, "What is Learning Management System Software | LMS Software For Schools & Colleges." Accessed: Dec. 12, 2023. [Online]. Available: https://www.iitms.co.in/learningmanagement-system/
- [26] S. Devi, "Moodle-An Effective Learning Management System for 21 st Century Learners,"
 2020, Accessed: Dec. 05, 2023. [Online]. Available: https://www.researchgate.net/publication/342259946

- [27] A. Agarwal, "Learning platforms: edX," *Executive Education after the Pandemic: A Vision for the Future*, pp. 277–286, Nov. 2021, doi: 10.1007/978-3-030-82343-6_28/COVER.
- [28] JOHN DSOUZA, "Based Learning 7: GBL Game-Based Learning | by JOHN DSOUZA | Medium." Accessed: Dec. 12, 2023. [Online]. Available: https://medium.com/@johnharrydsouza/based-learning-7-gbl-game-based-learning-123c2a5a5b55
- [29] S. Subhash and E. A. Cudney, "Gamified learning in higher education: A systematic review of the literature," *Comput Human Behav*, vol. 87, pp. 192–206, Oct. 2018, doi: 10.1016/j.chb.2018.05.028.
- [30] J. T. Kim and W. H. Lee, "Dynamical model for gamification of learning (DMGL)," *Multimed Tools Appl*, vol. 74, no. 19, pp. 8483–8493, 2015, doi: 10.1007/s11042-013-1612-8.
- [31] M. A. Hassan, U. Habiba, F. Majeed, and M. Shoaib, "Adaptive gamification in e-learning based on students' learning styles," *Interactive Learning Environments*, vol. 29, no. 4, pp. 545–565, 2021, doi: 10.1080/10494820.2019.1588745.
- [32] T. Kucher, "Principles and Best Practices of Designing Digital Game-Based Learning Environments.," *International Journal of Technology in Education and Science*, vol. 5, no. 2, pp. 213–223, 2021, doi: 10.46328/ijtes.190.
- [33] A. Foster and M. Shah, "Principles for Advancing Game-Based Learning in Teacher Education," Journal of Digital Learning in Teacher Education, vol. 36, no. 2, pp. 84–95, Apr. 2020, doi: 10.1080/21532974.2019.1695553.
- [34] T. E. Coleman and A. G. Money, "Student-centred digital game-based learning: a conceptual framework and survey of the state of the art," *High Educ (Dordr)*, vol. 79, no. 3, pp. 415–457, Mar. 2020, doi: 10.1007/S10734-019-00417-0/TABLES/6.
- [35] S. Adipat, K. Laksana, K. Busayanon, A. Ausawasowan, and B. Adipat, "Engaging Students in the Learning Process with Game-Based Learning: The Fundamental Concepts," *International Journal of Technology in Education*, vol. 4, no. 3, pp. 542–552, Jul. 2021, doi: 10.46328/IJTE.169.
- [36] M. Algayres et al., "Collaborative Game Design for Learning: The Challenges of Adaptive Game-Based Learning for the Flipped Classroom," *Lecture Notes of the Institute for Computer Sciences, Social-Informatics and Telecommunications Engineering, LNICST*, vol. 367 LNICST, pp. 228–242, 2021, doi: 10.1007/978-3-030-73426-8_13.
- [37] E. Jääskä, K. Aaltonen, and J. Kujala, "Game-Based Learning in Project Sustainability Management Education," *Sustainability 2021, Vol. 13, Page 8204*, vol. 13, no. 15, p. 8204, Jul. 2021, doi: 10.3390/SU13158204.
- [38] N. Morze, V. Vember, and L. Varchenko-trotsenko, "How To Create an Effective Flipped Learning Sequence in Higher Education," *E-learning*, no. December, 2019.
- J. O'Flaherty and C. Phillips, "The use of flipped classrooms in higher education: A scoping review," *Internet and Higher Education*, vol. 25, pp. 85–95, 2015, doi: 10.1016/j.iheduc.2015.02.002.

- [40] D. R. Garrison and H. Kanuka, "Blended learning: Uncovering its transformative potential in higher education," *Internet and Higher Education*, vol. 7, no. 2, pp. 95–105, 2004, doi: 10.1016/j.iheduc.2004.02.001.
- [41] F. B. Topu and Y. Goktas, "The effects of guided-unguided learning in 3d virtual environment on students' engagement and achievement," *Comput Human Behav*, vol. 92, pp. 1–10, Mar. 2019, doi: 10.1016/J.CHB.2018.10.022.
- [42] O. López Chávez, L. F. Rodríguez, and J. O. Gutierrez-Garcia, "A comparative case study of 2D, 3D and immersive-virtual-reality applications for healthcare education," *Int J Med Inform*, vol. 141, p. 104226, Sep. 2020, doi: 10.1016/J.IJMEDINF.2020.104226.
- [43] A. Ibañez-Etxeberria, C. J. Gómez-Carrasco, O. Fontal, and S. García-Ceballos, "Virtual Environments and Augmented Reality Applied to Heritage Education. An Evaluative Study," *Applied Sciences 2020, Vol. 10, Page 2352*, vol. 10, no. 7, p. 2352, Mar. 2020, doi: 10.3390/APP10072352.
- [44] M. Çoban and İ. Göksu, "Using virtual reality learning environments to motivate and socialize undergraduates in distance learning," *Participatory Educational Research*, vol. 9, no. 2, pp. 199–218, Mar. 2022, doi: 10.17275/PER.22.36.9.2.
- [45] J. A. di Lanzo, A. Valentine, F. Sohel, A. Y. T. Yapp, K. C. Muparadzi, and M. Abdelmalek, "A review of the uses of virtual reality in engineering education," *Computer Applications in Engineering Education*, vol. 28, no. 3, pp. 748–763, May 2020, doi: 10.1002/CAE.22243.
- [46] A. O. Elfakki, S. Sghaier, and A. A. Alotaibi, "An Efficient System Based on Experimental Laboratory in 3D Virtual Environment for Students with Learning Disabilities," *Electronics* 2023, Vol. 12, Page 989, vol. 12, no. 4, p. 989, Feb. 2023, doi: 10.3390/ELECTRONICS12040989.
- [47] S. Mistretta, "The Metaverse—An Alternative Education Space," https://www.intechopen.com/journals/1/articles/87, vol. 2022, pp. 1–23, Mar. 2022, doi: 10.5772/ACRT.05.
- [48] I. Horváth, "Experiences and Guidelines for Developing 3D VR Curricula," pp. 99–123, 2023, doi: 10.1007/978-3-031-10956-0_5.
- [49] Unity, "Unity." Accessed: Mar. 11, 2022. [Online]. Available: https://unity.com/
- [50] A. Okita, "Learning C# Programming with Unity 3D, second edition," Sep. 2019, doi: 10.1201/9780429810251.
- [51] "An Introduction to Unreal Engine 4 Andrew Sanders Βιβλία Google." Accessed: Dec. 07, 2023. [Online]. Available: https://books.google.gr/books?hl=el&Ir=&id=2i8NDgAAQBAJ&oi=fnd&pg=PP1&dq=unreal+en gine&ots=su4j5b7sXt&sig=rrsJjJ6-JbfQkhMJ8mI4XDU3mU&redir_esc=y#v=onepage&q=unreal%20engine&f=false
- [52] M. Mittring, "Finding next gen," pp. 97–121, Aug. 2007, doi: 10.1145/1281500.1281671.
- [53] I. Papantoni, C. Pierrakeas, and K. Dragogiannis, "TRAINING EFFECTIVENESS AND USER EXPERIENCE OF EDUCATION TEACHER TRAINING OF AN OPEN SOURCE LMS USING THIS LMS," EDULEARN19 Proceedings, vol. 1, pp. 7237–7243, Jul. 2019, doi: 10.21125/EDULEARN.2019.1725.

- [54] S. H. Bariah, D. Rahadian, K. A. N. Imanis, Y. Purwanti, and I. Nasruloh, "Prototyping online learning media using SCORM," *IOP Conf Ser Mater Sci Eng*, vol. 1098, no. 3, p. 032103, Mar. 2021, doi: 10.1088/1757-899X/1098/3/032103.
- [55] S. Devi, "Moodle-An Effective Learning Management System for 21 st Century Learners,"
 2020, Accessed: Dec. 05, 2023. [Online]. Available: https://www.researchgate.net/publication/342259946
- [56] Z. Zhou *et al.*, "Personalized virtual reality simulation training system for percutaneous needle insertion and comparison of zSpace and vive," *Comput Biol Med*, vol. 146, p. 105585, Jul. 2022, doi: 10.1016/J.COMPBIOMED.2022.105585.
- [57] N. Ali, S. Ullah, D. Khan, H. Rahman, and A. Alam, "The effect of adaptive aids on different levels of students' performance in a virtual reality chemistry laboratory," *Educ Inf Technol (Dordr)*, pp. 1–20, Jun. 2023, doi: 10.1007/S10639-023-11897-0/METRICS.
- [58] T. R. Lim *et al.*, "Virtual reality curriculum increases paediatric residents' knowledge of CHDs," *Cardiol Young*, vol. 33, no. 3, pp. 410–414, Mar. 2023, doi: 10.1017/S1047951122000890.
- [59] C. pang Wang, Y. J. Lan, W. T. Tseng, Y. T. R. Lin, and K. C. L. Gupta, "On the effects of 3D virtual worlds in language learning – a meta-analysis," *Comput Assist Lang Learn*, vol. 33, no. 8, pp. 891–915, 2020, doi: 10.1080/09588221.2019.1598444.
- [60] R. M. Ryan, E. L. Deci, M. Vansteenkiste, and B. Soenens, "Building a science of motivated persons: Self-determination theory's empirical approach to human experience and the regulation of behavior.," *Motiv Sci*, vol. 7, no. 2, pp. 97–110, Jun. 2021, doi: 10.1037/MOT0000194.
- [61] P. Ajisoko and P. Ajisoko, "The Use of Duolingo Apps to Improve English Vocabulary Learning," International Journal of Emerging Technologies in Learning (iJET), vol. 15, no. 7, pp. 149–155, 2020.
- [62] O. D. Rozhenko, "Gamification of Education as an Addition to Traditional Educational Technologies at the University *," 2021.
- [63] W. T. Tseng, H. J. Liou, and H. C. Chu, "Vocabulary learning in virtual environments: Learner autonomy and collaboration," *System*, vol. 88, p. 102190, Feb. 2020, doi: 10.1016/J.SYSTEM.2019.102190.
- [64] K. Yunita Saputri, S. Santoso, A. Hindrayani -, A. M. Afjar, and M. Syukri, "Attention, relevance, confidence, satisfaction (ARCS) model on students' motivation and learning outcomes in learning physics," J Phys Conf Ser, vol. 1460, no. 1, p. 012119, Feb. 2020, doi: 10.1088/1742-6596/1460/1/012119.
- [65] M. Iko Permatasari *et al.*, "BioDigital human: Media pembelajaran di era new normal," *Bioma : Jurnal Ilmiah Biologi*, vol. 11, no. 1, pp. 50–60, Apr. 2022, doi: 10.26877/BIOMA.V11I1.9723.
- [66] R. Sadler and T. Thrasher, "Teaching Languages with Virtual Reality: Things you may need to know," 2021, Accessed: Dec. 07, 2023. [Online]. Available: http://calico.org/infobytes.
- [67] M. O'Connor, J. Stowe, J. Potocnik, N. Giannotti, S. Murphy, and L. Rainford, "3D virtual reality simulation in radiography education: The students' experience," *Radiography*, vol. 27, no. 1, pp. 208–214, Feb. 2021, doi: 10.1016/J.RADI.2020.07.017.

- [68] E. Pacheco-Velázquez, D. E. Salinas-Navarro, and M. S. Ramírez-Montoya, "Serious Games and Experiential Learning: Options for Engineering Education," *International Journal of Serious Games*, vol. 10, no. 3, pp. 3–21, Sep. 2023, doi: 10.17083/IJSG.V10I3.593.
- [69] C. Ferguson, E. L. van den Broek, and H. van Oostendorp, "On the role of interaction mode and story structure in virtual reality serious games," *Comput Educ*, vol. 143, p. 103671, Jan. 2020, doi: 10.1016/J.COMPEDU.2019.103671.
- [70] E. A. Alrehaili and H. Al Osman, "A virtual reality role-playing serious game for experiential learning," *Interactive Learning Environments*, vol. 30, no. 5, pp. 922–935, 2022, doi: 10.1080/10494820.2019.1703008.
- [71] S. Loewen *et al.*, "Mobile-assisted language learning: A Duolingo case study," *ReCALL*, vol. 31, no. 3, pp. 293–311, Sep. 2019, doi: 10.1017/S0958344019000065.
- [72] F. Almeida and J. Simoes, "The Role of Serious Games, Gamification and Industry 4.0 Tools in the Education 4.0 Paradigm," *Contemp Educ Technol*, vol. 10, no. 2, pp. 120–136, Apr. 2019, doi: 10.30935/CET.554469.